
 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

1055 Ventura Ave. 
Oak View, CA 93022 

Board Room 
May 25, 2016 

3:00 P.M. 
 

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 

 
5. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the May 11, 2016 Board Meeting. 
b. Resolution setting a public hearing on June 22, 2016 to hear input 

from the public regarding the Urban Water Management 
Plan/Agricultural Water Management Plan 2016 Update. 

c. Resolution setting a public hearing on the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 
Budget for June 22, 2016. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
6. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 5/11/16 – 

5/19/16. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving report 



 2 

   
7. Resolution to Approve and Adopt Ordinance No. 16-01 Amending Rules 

and Regulations for the Public Use of the Lake Casitas Recreational Area 
and Repealing Ordinance No. 14-01 in its Entirety and approve the job 
classifications for Park Ranger I, II, III and IV. 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution and Ordinance 

    
8. Information Items: 
 

a. Executive Committee Minutes. 
b. Investment Report. 
 

9. Closed Session 
 

a.   Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Government Code 
Section 54957). Title: General Manager 

 
10. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, 
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  113.  (Govt. Code 
Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1 

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

May 11, 2016 
 

 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held May 11, 2016 at the Casitas 
Municipal Water District located at 1055 Ventura Ave. in Oak View, California. 
The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. Directors Kaiser, Baggerly, Word, 
Hicks and Bergen were present.  Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General 
Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  
There were five staff members and no members of the public in attendance.  
President Kaiser led the group in the flag salute. 
 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

None 
 

2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board of the May 20th Casitas Water 
Adventure soft opening.  Staff has been working hard to get the leaks fixed and 
everything ready.  He then mentioned the Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
meeting the previous day where they finalized the voting process for the JPA. 
The board was informed of outreach meeting to be held at the Oak View Park 
and Resource Center regarding Oaks and Orchard drought course with the UC 
Master Gardeners.  
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Hicks commented on an article in the LA Times about storage in 
the desert towards Las Vegas and their approval to pump the water and ship it 
into the city.   
 

Director Baggerly asked the Recreation Committee to think about signage 
on the New Zealand mud snail to be placed at the entrance to the park to advise 
people what is going on.  Mr. Wickstrum explained that our fishermen don’t bring 
in waders and he suggested we coordinate with the Department of Fish & Wildlife 
to consider signage in the area.  Director Hicks asked if they are able to get 
through the fish screens in the event that we divert.  Mr. Wickstrum explained 
probably as they are very small but it is not evident that they would clog our 
pipes. 
 

President 
 Kaiser applauded Director Bergen and Mr. Wickstrum for their efforts on 

the GSA including the dedication of time for the long meetings. 
 

Director Baggerly informed the board that OBGMA was notified that we 
had received a comment on the basin boundary modification website.  The State 
Water Resources Control Board is taking exception with the exclusions that were 
noted in the modification.  We will respond to the questions.  It will take more 
work and also applies to upper Ventura River basin.     



 2 

 
Director Kaiser informed the board that he was contacted by Bud Rowe, 

former concessionaire at the lake, who tried to get into fish on Tuesday.  Park 
Services Manager Belser informed the board that we have now moved to Old 
Coyote as Santa Ana is too shallow.  We are waiting for additional supply of the 
matting material and it will remain closed until we get the product.  President 
Kaiser asked for a quick email to be sent to inform the board. 
 

Director Baggerly asked if we have you heard from CalPERS yet.  The 
Clerk of the Board responded yes.   
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 

Director Bergen reported on attendance at the Upper Ventura River Basin 
GSA meeting and explained that the state board wants San Antonio creek to be 
part of the Upper Ventura River basin and it has never been.  San Antonio creek 
is nowhere near a basin.  They work with different perspectives with their 
mandates.  We had a long meeting and worked through the voting structure.  
There is also a huge gap in time between when we can adopt the JPA and when 
we can assess fees.  The agency will be funded through extraction fees.  In the 
interim we have to set up the board, bylaws, and 218 processes before you can 
do the fees and it won’t be inexpensive.  Money will be an issue.   
 
 Director Hicks reported on his attendance at the AWA board meeting.  
Director Baggerly attended the Ventura River Watershed Council and gave a 
short update on the OBGMA.  Director Word provided his written report for 
attending ACWA where there were continued discussions on the drought.  Going 
up on 101 there was no evidence of any drought with new acres of vineyards 
going in.  He talked to some farmers around Stockton area and asked about the 
water and they said when we don’t have state water we put a deeper well in.  
Coming down 99 there was a lot of evidence of fallowed fields and more 
conversion of row crops disappearing and converting to trees.  During the 
conference there was angst on regulations being imposed and regulatory 
agencies lack of use of science, especially with the delta.  There were 
discussions on water markets and we will hear more of that.  We can be glad we 
don’t take or depend on state water.   
 
5. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the April 13, 2016 Board Meeting. 
 
 The consent agenda was offered by Director Word, seconded by Director 
Hicks and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
6. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 4/27/16 – 

5/4/16.        APPROVED 



 3 

 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Bergen the 
Accounts Payable report was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
   
7. Budget Workshop for Initial Review of the Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-

2017 Budget including Revenue, Expenses and Capital Projects. 
  
 Mr. Wickstrum presented the proposed 2016-2017 Budget and discussed 
various expenditures, revenue and the capital projects.  The Board also 
discussed the possibility of adjusting rates.  Mr. Wickstrum suggested that we 
move forward with the budget process and schedule the budget hearing on June 
22nd and the Finance committee continue discussions on rates with further 
information from Mr. Mathews. 
   
8. Information Items: 
 

a. Notice sent to stakeholders regarding the May 18, 2016 workshop 
for the 2016 Urban Water Management Plan and Agricultural Water 
Management Plan. 

b. Water Consumption Report. 
c. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
d. Investment Report. 
 
On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Hicks, the 

information items were approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
President Kaiser called for a break at 5:01 p.m. and moved the meeting 

back in open session at 5:07 p.m. and then immediately moved the meeting into 
closed session. 

 
9. Closed Session 
 

a.   Conference with Legal counsel – Anticipated Litigation. 
Initiation of Litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(c). (Number of Potential Cases: One)  

 
b. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Anticipated Litigation  

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of 
Section 54956.9, Government Code. (number of potential cases: 
one)  

 



 4 

c. Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release. (Government Code 
Section 54957). 

 
d. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Government Code 

Section 54957). Title: General Manager 
 

President Kaiser moved the meeting back into open session at 5:53       
p.m. with Mr. Mathews stating on closed session item 9 a the reportable action 
taken by a 5-0 vote for special counsel to file a second cause of action per ccp 
526 (b) . The motion was made by Director Word and seconded by Director 
Baggerly.  Mr. Mathews then explained that for closed session items 9 b, c and d 
there was no reportable action taken.   
 
10. Adjournment  
 
 President Kaiser adjourned the meeting at 5:54 p.m. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       James W. Word, Secretary 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 RESOLUTION SETTING THE TIME AND PLACE OF A PUBLIC 
HEARING FOR INPUT REGARDING THE URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT 
PLAN/AGRICULTURAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2016 UPDATE  
 
 

WHEREAS, Casitas is interested in public comments regarding the adoption of the 
Urban Water management Plan/Agricultural Water Management Plan 2016 Update;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Casitas Municipal Water District as follows: 
 

1.   A public hearing will be conducted for the purpose of hearing all interested 
parties regarding the Urban Water Management Plan/Agricultural Water Management Plan 
2016 Update. 
 

2. The place of said hearing is hereby fixed at Casitas' Office, 1055 Ventura 
Avenue, in the town of Oak View.  The date and time for said hearing is hereby fixed as 
June 22, 2016, at 3:00 p.m. 
 

3. The Clerk of the Board of Casitas is hereby directed to give notice of said 
hearing by publishing a notice of the time and place of the hearing in the local newspapers. 
 
 ADOPTED this 25th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Pete Kaiser, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
James W. Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 RESOLUTION SETTING THE TIME AND PLACE OF A PUBLIC 
 HEARING FOR INPUT REGARDING THE 2016-2017 BUDGET 
 
 

WHEREAS, Casitas is interested in public comments regarding the adoption of the 
2016-2017 budget;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Casitas Municipal Water District as follows: 
 

1.   A public hearing will be conducted for the purpose of hearing all interested 
parties regarding the 2016-2017 budget. 
 

2. The place of said hearing is hereby fixed at Casitas' Office, 1055 Ventura 
Avenue, in the town of Oak View.  The date and time for said hearing is hereby fixed as 
June 22, 2016, at 3:00 p.m. 
 

3. The Clerk of the Board of Casitas is hereby directed to give notice of said 
hearing by publishing a notice of the time and place of the hearing in the local newspapers. 
 
 ADOPTED this 25th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Pete Kaiser, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
James W. Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

























1 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 

RE:  Additional Information Concerning Limited Peace Officer Status and  
  Proposed Amendments to Rules and Regulations for the Public Use of  
  Lake Casitas Recreation Area 

Date:   May 20, 2016 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. Approve and Adopt Proposed Amended CMWD Ordinance No. 16-01 

Establishing Rules and Regulations for the Public use of the Lake Casitas 
Recreation Area; and 

 
2. Approve CMWD Job Classifications to add the Park Ranger I, II, III, and IV 

positions.     
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 

Depending upon the Board’s decision on the above-referenced 
recommendations and any subsequent related decisions about pension costs, the 
creation of a Park Ranger series of positions may have a neutral effect on overall 
personnel-related costs or it may result in a significant increase of personnel and 
pension costs in the future.    
 
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS  
 
 At your Board’s April 27, 2016 meeting, the Board received and filed a report 
entitled “A Current Assessment of Public Safety Services at Lake Casitas and 
Surrounding District Property” from the law firm of Lawrence Beach Allen & Choi 
(Exhibit 1).  The report, in pertinent part, outlined four different options on determining 
the role and status of Park Safety Officers.  After discussing this matter, a motion was 
passed to direct Staff to return to the Board at another meeting with the following 
additional information to assist it in making a decision. 
 
1. Requested Information   
 



2 
 

 (a)   Proposed amendments to District Ordinances that will enable the 
designation of certain District employees as “peace officers.”  
 
 (b)  A staff report explaining the need for and operational impact of 
designating certain District employees as “peace officers” or persons with “limited peace 
officer status.”  
 
 (c)  Information from CalPERS on pension costs related to “peace officers.”  
 
 (d)  Information on Human Resource staffing infrastructure, including cost, for 
 employees designated as “peace officers.”  
 
 (e)  Information on any additional insurance premium costs for District 
employees designated as “peace officers.” 
 
2. Summary of Responses to Requested Information  
 
 Based upon staff, general counsel and special legal counsel research and 
analysis, the following answers responses correspond to the above listed items: 
 
 (a) Proposed Amended Casitas Municipal Water District Ordinance no. 16-01, 
An Ordinance of the Casitas Municipal Water Establishing Rules and Regulations for 
the Public Use of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area in both legislative and clean 
formats.  Attached as Exhibits 2 and 3, respectively, and incorporated herein by 
reference.  The primary changes to this Ordinance involve: 
 

• the introduction of the position of Park Ranger as the CMWD employee 
with primary authority and responsibility for the enforcement of CMWD 
rules and regulations governing the use of the Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area (Section 1.8) 

• defining the powers and duties and jurisdiction of the Park Ranger in 
terms of Penal Code § 830.34, subdivision (d) and Water Code § 71341.5 
(Sections 2.1.1 to 2.1.5) 

 
The creation of a Park Ranger job classification in the CMWD code enables the 

CMWD to hire and train employees dedicated to the enforcement of CMWD rules and 
regulations governing the public use of Lake Casitas and for the protection of this 
important source and storage of water.  Prior to any assignment to a Park Ranger 
position, the applicant must meet the Peace Officer Standards and Training (POST) 
minimum requirements (Pen. Code § 13500 et seq.). Casitas has made arrangements 
for background screening, psychological evaluation, and agility testing.   

 
The current Park Service Officer classification will be retained and individuals 

occupying those positions may apply for the Park Ranger position which requires 
additional training, background screening and testing.  Park Services Officers will 
continue to serve in their current capacity and perform duties within their current job 



3 
 

description and training, such as performing boat inspections in conformance with the 
Watercraft Inspection and Decontamination Interception Training (WIT).   
 

We are currently in negotiations to hire a retired Ventura County Sheriff 
Department officer on a temporary employment assignment to assist the District with 
the development of training, hiring, policy review, and to provide professional expertise 
to coordinate the goals and objectives of the operations and function of the Ordinance 
enforcement division at Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 
 

The General Manager and his staff will develop -- with the help of LEXIPOL, a 
third party service that produces state-specific policy manuals with regular updates, and 
Liebert Cassidy Whitmore (LCW) -- a CMWD specific set of policies and procedures to 
train and guide the Park Ranger employees in the enforcement of CMWD rules and 
regulations that govern the public use of Lake Casitas. 
 
 (b) Regarding the District’s need for and use of employees who are either 
considered “peace officers,” persons with “limited peace officer status” or “park rangers” 
(Pen. Code § 830.34(d)) – the following charts were put together to characterize the 
incident statistics at the Lake Casitas Recreation Area.   
 
The below chart summarizes data received from the Ventura County Sheriff’s 
Department concerning calls for service at Lake Casitas for 2011-2015:   
 

Year 

CALLS FOR SERVICE 
FROM CIVILIANS AND 
PARK STAFF AND 
VCSD DISPATCHED 
RESPONSE TO LAKE 
CASITAS 

SELF-INITIATED 
ACTIVITIES BY DEPUTY 
– **This would include 
Deputy simply advising 
Sheriff’s Dispatch that 
they are patrolling the 
area inside Lake Casitas 

2011 

49---(35 disturbances, 
fights, keep the peace, 
etc.) 

23 ---(11 actual 
investigative stops by 
Deputy) 

2012 

45---(30 disturbances, 
fights, keep the peace, 
etc.) 

20---(8 actual 
investigative stops by 
Deputy) 

2013 

41---(32 disturbances, 
fights, keep the peace, 
etc.) 

26---(6 actual 
investigative stops by 
Deputy) 

2014 

67---(49 disturbances, 
fights, keep the peace, 
etc.) 

78---(19 actual 
investigative stops by 
Deputy) 

2015 

69---(42 disturbances, 
fights, keep the peace, 
etc.) 

45---(15 actual 
investigative stops by 
Deputy) 

Total 271 

192---(59 actual 
investigative stops by 
Deputy) 



4 
 

The below chart is a summary of documentation received involving incidents logged by 
CMWD Park Services staff for 2011-2015: 
 

Year 
CRIMINAL 
INCIDENTS 

OTHER INCIDENTS MEDICAL 
INCIDENTS 

2011 54 12 40 
2012 54 10 45 
2013 70 17 63 
2014 124 21 54 
2015 133 16 58 
Total 435 76 260 
 
 
 A further analysis of the type of incidents occurring at the Recreation Area 
reveals that most of them were misdemeanor activities or minor disturbances. However, 
there were a very small number of investigations related to more serious incidents 
concerning drug/alcohol offenses and firearms.  The largest single category of incidents 
logged by Park Services staff involved medical issues which also included missing 
persons and search/rescue incidents. 
 

Since August 2015, Casitas staff has been tracking field customer contacts and 
other Ordinance violations which are not captured or reflected in the above tables.  
These field reports indicate a high number of proactive, preventative and educational 
enforcement practices and contacts which Casitas staff does on a daily basis.  The field 
reports are attached in Exhibit 4. 
 
 From an agency liability perspective, it is also important to know that individual 
peace officers can assert qualified immunity as an affirmative defense in a civil rights 
lawsuit claiming that local law enforcement officers violated their constitutional rights.  
The doctrine of qualified immunity is not an absolute or universally-applied defense in 
these matters and the limitations of the qualified immunity in federal civil rights actions 
must be acknowledged.   

Water Code Section 71660 gives the Casitas Board the authority to set rules and 
regulation and impose infractions and misdemeanors by ordinance. This ordinance 
authority does not automatically give any individual District employee the authority to 
enforce the terms and conditions of a District ordinance. Only California Peace Officers 
or Limited Peace Officers are authorized to arrest and detain, which are central 
elements of District ordinance enforcement. The authority to arrest or detain an 
individual is necessary to enforce CMWD Ordinance rules and regulations.  For 
example, in order for a citation to be issued to a person observed swimming in Lake 
Casitas, the person must be questioned by District personnel and provide proof of 
personal information to District personnel.  This contact and interaction is legally 
considered detainment and if a citation is issued, that is considered an arrest. 



5 
 

  The California Water Code provides legal means for a Water District to grant 
peace officer authority to employees through Section 71341.5: 

(a) A district may employ park rangers who shall have authority and 
powers conferred by sub division (d) of Section 830.34 of the Penal Code 
upon peace officers. 

(b) For the purpose of carrying out subdivision (a) the district shall adhere 
to the standards for recruitment and training of peace officers established 
by the Commission of Peace Officer Standards and Training pursuant to 
Title 4 (commencing with Section 13500) of Part 4 of the Penal Code. 

(c) Every park ranger employed by the district shall conform to the 
standards for peace officers adopted by the Commission of Peace Officer 
Standards Training. Any park ranger who fails to conform to those 
standards shall not have the powers of a peace officer. 

In order to provide Casitas’ staff the legal authority to enforce Casitas’ Ordinance 
14-01, the addition of Penal Code 830.34(d) to the Ordinance is necessary. This will 
provide the necessary legal authority as defined in our Ordinance Casitas Municipal 
Water District Ordinance No 14-01 Section 2. General, 2.1.1 to empower Casitas staff 
with enforcement authority. 

 (c) CalPERS, the public employee retirement system used by the District for 
its employees, sent a letter dated May 2, 2016 to the District on the issue of Park 
Service Officer or Park Ranger classifications for Local Safety retirement status.  
CalPERS, after reviewing the duty statements for the Park Services Officer and Park 
Ranger classifications, stated that since the District “does not currently contract for 
[Government Code] Section 20423.5, eligible employees in these classifications must 
therefore be reported to CalPERS as Miscellaneous members.”  A letter from CalPERS 
dated May 2, 2016 (Exhibit 5) confirms the CalPERS position in this matter.  
Government Code section 20423.5 is an optional provision that allows a 
member/contracting agency in CalPERS such as the CMWD to elect/decide if eligible 
employees who are classified as “Park Rangers” so that they can receive “Local safety 
member” retirement benefits.  This may be a decision for the future and which may be 
subject to collective bargaining. 
 
 (d)   The District currently uses LCW as its primary labor and public 
employment law firm.  LCW is very experienced in all aspects of labor and employment 
law matters dealing with public safety employees.  LCW has been representing public 
safety agencies across California for 30 years and in the course of that representation 
LCW has literally written the books (i.e., the California Public Employee Relations 
Pocket Guides) on Public Safety Officers Procedural Bill of Rights and the Firefighters 
Procedural Bill of Rights.  LCW has litigated many cases in this area and conducts 
workshops and training to public agencies across the state on labor and employment 
law issues affecting public safety agencies. With LCW’s guidance and assistance, the 



6 
 

District should have the sufficient human resources infrastructure to handle public safety 
employees, if it decides to move in that direction. The cost of any additional legal 
resources related to having Park Ranger employees has yet to be determined.   
 
 (e) District staff contacted its insurance broker, Alliant Insurance Services, 
Inc., and asked them the following question, “If the CMWD amends its ordinance to 
include park rangers or public safety officers with limited peace officer status to enforce 
its rules and regulations on CMWD property and if CMWD will now employ 8 people 
with limited peace officer status (they will not be allowed to carry firearms), will CMWD’s 
liability insurance premiums increase, stay the same or decrease because of these 
changes?  And if so, by how much?”   
 
 Initially, the insurance broker responded to this question in a May 2, 2016, email 
stating that there would not be any impact to the District’s insurance premiums because 
the percentage of exposure on the overall change is considered small and “non-
premium impacting.”  A copy of the emails between Casitas and Alliant are attached as 
Exhibit 6. However, upon further communication with an inquiry of the insurance broker 
representatives (Anne Krueger and Sheryl Fitzpatrick of Alliant Insurance Services, Inc., 
Public Entity Group) by legal counsel on May 18, 2016, it has been determined that:   
 

• the proposed addition of the Park Ranger position in the District Code will 
be considered a change in the insured’s operations by the insurance 
broker; 

• this change in operations will need to be reviewed by the insurance 
underwriters to determine if there will be a resulting increase in insurance 
premiums and by how much;  

• the insurance underwriters will need to review the new ordinance as well 
as operating policies and procedures for the Park Rangers; and 

• the current general liability policy’s coverage for “personal injury” claims 
does cover claims that may arise out of “false arrest, imprisonment, 
detention, or malicious prosecution.” 

 
It should be clearly understood and recognized that Casitas is evaluated annually 

for liability insurance contract renewals by the insurance underwriter for changes in 
operation that might impact insurance premiums.  A change to peace officer status may 
or may not result in a change to the liability insurance cost. 
 
3. Proposed Park Ranger Job Descriptions. 
 
 The Board has inquired staff regarding the composition of Park Ranger job 
descriptions.  Staff has developed the attached Exhibit 7 which outlines the job 
descriptions for the Park Ranger I, II, II, and IV positions.   
 

The job descriptions for the Park Services Officers would remain as currently 
written.  The Park Services Officers would continue to function to assist Park Rangers in 
an observe and report function, and  will continue to serve in their current capacity, 



7 
 

and perform duties within their current job description and training such as boat 
inspections in conformance with the Watercraft Inspection and Decontamination 
Interception Training (“WIT”) training.  To be very clear, the current Park Services 
Officers would have to apply for and meet all requirements of the Park Ranger position 
prior to being considered for the Park Ranger position.  
 
4.  Proposed Park Ranger Salaries. 
 
 Staff has reviewed the salary scales of several public agencies that employ 
limited peace officers, who perform similar daily tasks, and found that the current 
Casitas salary ranges for the Park Services Officers are within the salary ranges of 
those other agencies.  The salary scale for the Park Ranger will be matched to that of 
the Park Services Officers. 
 
5. Policies & Procedures for Park Rangers. 
 
 As stated previously in this memorandum, District staff development of policies 
and procedures for Park Rangers will be developed with the assistance of a firm such 
as LEXIPOL.  These policies and procedures will be designed to comport with the limits 
specified in the Ordinance.  The Beach/Allen/Choi Report provided an example of a Use 
of Force policy that could be adapted to meet the scope of the Casitas Ordinance 
governing public use of Lake Casitas.  Another example of potential Park Ranger 
policies and procedures is attached in Exhibit 8 - Draft Scope of Law Enforcement 
Responsibilities.  This policy in Exhibit 6 has been set in place by a similar park agency 
for limited enforcement of park ordinances and could serve well as an appropriate initial 
guidance for the writing of all other enforcement policies.  
 

The Policies will also address the Board’s authorization of specific equipment 
and uniform to be assigned to the Park Ranger, and will clarify which equipment is not 
authorized and that equipment authorized is limited to equipment that is a District 
standard and District procured and issued to each Park Ranger. 
 

All of this to say that these policies and procedures will be developed once the 
District Ordinance is amended to create the Park Ranger position consistent with Penal 
Code § 830.34(d) and Water Code § 71341.5. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 

For all of the foregoing reasons, District staff recommends that your Board 
approve and adopt amendments to the District Rules and Regulations for the Public 
Use of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area so that Park Rangers with limited peace 
officer status can properly enforce those rules and regulations for the benefit of the 
public health, safety and welfare. 
 
  



8 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Exhibit 1 – A Current Assessment of Public Safety Services at Lake Casitas and 
Surrounding District Property – Lawrence Beach, Allen & Choi 
 
Exhibit 2 - Casitas Municipal Water District Ordinance No. 16-01, An Ordinance of the 
Casitas Municipal Water Establishing Rules and Regulations for the Public Use of the 
Lake Casitas Recreation Area - legislative format. 
 
Exhibit 3 – Casitas Municipal Water District Ordinance No. 16-01, An Ordinance of the 
Casitas Municipal Water Establishing Rules and Regulations for the Public Use of the 
Lake Casitas Recreation Area - clean format.   
 
Exhibit 4 – Lake Casitas Recreation Area Field Report Summaries – August 2015 to 
April 2016 
 
Exhibit 5 –.CalPERS letter of May 2, 2016 
 
Exhibit 6 - Emails between Casitas Municipal Water District and Alliant Insurance 
Services, Inc.  
 
Exhibit 7 – Job Descriptions – Park Ranger I, II, III, and IV 
 
Exhibit 8 - Draft Scope of Law Enforcement Responsibilities. 
 



























































Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 3



2015
Recreation revenue:

Animal permit 16,797$          
Bad debt collection recovery 450                 
Boat fees - annual 38,640            
Boat fees - daily 9,282              
Boat fees - overnight 1,204              
Boat inspection fees - Quagga 3,200              
Boat lock revenue - Quagga 2,786              
Boat rental - concession 60,379            
Cafe - concession 25,120            
Cafe pass fee 22,940            
Cafe pass reimbursement (22,162)          
Camping fees 1,682,659       
Camp promotion 10,587            
Commercials 7,350              
Event reimbursement 50                   
Events 25,826            
Gift cards and certificates (180)               
Guest pass (300)               
Impound fee 525                 
Kayak and canoes annual 4,005              
Kayak and canoes daily 41                   
Miscellaneous revenue 1,096              
Over / short - recreation 139                 
Over / short - water park (14)                 
Park store 46,682            
Rain checks (1,095)            
Reservations 123,523          
Shower facility fees 19,342            
Snow bird pumping 1,370              
Trailer storage fees 173,168          
Vehicle fees - daily 206,701          
Violation ordinance fees 14,925            
Visitor cards 118,651          
Water park - group pass fee (6,809)            
Water park - guest pass (216)               
Water park - junior lifeguard 7,051              
Water park - late day pass fee 73,481            
Water park - lifeguard training 1,317              
Water park - locker fee 1,251              
Water park - next day pass fee (1,492)            
Water park - promotion 18                   
Water park - rain checks (312)               
Water park - reservation fee 29,155            
Water park - season pass fee 25,106            
Water park - shade rental fee 7,610              
Water park - shower facility fee 23,014            
Water park - single splash fee 574,253          
Water park - water fitness - fee 8,688              
Water park snack bar 7,287              

Total recreation revenue 3,343,089$     

Continued on next page

Casitas Municipal Water District
Detail Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Recreation Department

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

63

Exhibit 3



2015
Recreation expenses:

Administrative overhead burden 974,182$        
Advertising and legal notices 4,692              
Bad debt provision 157                 
Bank charges 4,226              
Chemicals – water playground 1,562              
Chlorine 22,587            
Clothing and personal supplies 10,873            
Communications 23,166            
Computer upgrades – hardware and software 7,705              
Credit card fees 57,663            
District equipment 139,781          
Education and training 2,983              
Licenses and permits 7,326              
Memberships and dues 1,349              
Office supplies 1,357              
Outside contracts 216,279          
Pre-employment screening 7,563              
Postage 1,574              
Printing and binding 7,581              
Private vehicle mileage 451                 
Public information program 19,236            
Purchased water 55,504            
Safety program 1,601              
Salaries and benefits 2,239,510       
Service and supplies 176,627          
Small tools 4,705              
Travel expense 4,282              
Utilities 145,836          

Total 4,140,358       

Recreation operating (loss) before depreciation (797,269)        

Depreciation – recreation department (332,049)        

Recreation operating (loss) (1,129,318)$   

Casitas Municipal Water District
Detail Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Recreation Department

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

64

Exhibit 3



Exhibit 4



2014

Department Classification

Multiple 
Positions 
Footnote

Annual 
Salary 
Minimum

Annual 
Salary 
Maximum

Total 
Regular 

Pay
Overtime 

Pay
Lump 

Sum Pay Other Pay

Applicable 
Defined 
Benefit 
Pension 
Formula

Employees' 
Share of 
Pension 
Benefits

Defined 
Benefit 
Plan

Deferred 
Compensation/

Defined 
Contribution 

Plan

Health, 
Dental, 
Vision

Recreation Park Services Officer I 48081 58444 43175 15124 0 2805 2% @ 62 0 2603 0 5936
Recreation Park Services Officer III 57916 70398 67673 41345 1354 4020 2% @ 60 4879 6031 0 8336
Recreation Park Services Officer I 48081 58444 42601 15641 0 2112 2% @ 62 0 2579 0 6678
Recreation Park Services Officer I 48081 58444 27958 956 0 703 2% @ 62 0 1084 0 2039
Recreation Park Services Officer IV 66693 81066 80481 31945 0 5316 2% @ 60 5894 7258 0 9205
Recreation Park Services Officer II 52757 64128 55504 35582 0 3553 2% @ 62 0 3644 0 8168
Recreation Park Services Officer III 57916 70398 69081 1243 0 400 2% @ 60 4753 5878 0 15849
Recreation Park Services Officer III 57916 70398 8812 38 6048 12238 2% @ 60 635 790 0 1364

Exhibit 4

























Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 8



Exhibit 8



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 10



 
 

SUMMARY OF THE UNIQUE FEATURES OF THE LEXIPOL SYSTEM 
 

Lexipol is America’s leading provider of risk management services and resources for public 
safety organizations, delivering its copyrighted content and unique services through our 
exclusive proprietary web-based development system with an integrated training component. 
Lexipol has helped public safety agencies reduce risk and stay ahead of litigation trends, while 
communicating clear and concise policy guidance to their employees through our copyrighted 
content developed by our accomplished staff of attorneys and public safety experts. 
Additionally, Lexipol has established a unique set of risk management tools for public safety 
organizations by integrating agency-specific, customized policy manuals with the Daily Training 
Bulletin service accessed through a web browser or multi-platform mobile device application. 
The comprehensive Lexipol copyrighted content and services are not available through any 
other public or private resources or organizations. 
 
The program is unique in several ways, and there is no other system that offers the following 
integration in one package: 
 

1. Online (software-as-a-service) copyrighted policy manual content, document 
management, copyrighted training content and testing through web-based 
proprietary system tools. 
 

2. Regular and urgent copyrighted updates to content via web-based tools. 
 

3. Copyrighted Daily Training Bulletins (DTBs) that are based on realistic scenarios and 
written by experienced public safety personnel, including online and real-time testing 
modules. 
 

4. Archiving of all versions of the agency’s policy manual, as well as capturing of user 
electronic signatures that acknowledge policy updates and Daily Training Bulletin 
records and test results. 
 

5. Linking between the Daily Training Bulletins and policy sections to which the DTB 
applies. 
 

6. Robust reporting features, including exception reporting with export to MS Excel 
capabilities. 
 

7.  Contemporary policy content that may be modified by the agency via proprietary 
online tools, thus reducing policy development time significantly. 

Exhibit 10

http://www.lexipol.com/


 
 

ADDITIONAL FEATURES INCLUDE: 
 

Proprietary System and Software Tools: Over 150 copyrighted core policies based on federal 
standards and case law, state statutes and case law, regulatory actions and law enforcement 
best practices. The client agency has full editing capability to customize the manual to reflect 
the agency’s mission and philosophy. 
 
Updates: Lexipol provides regular electronic and interactive updates in response to legislative 
mandates, case law and evolution in best practices. It also provides client alerts and urgent 
updates in response to precedent-setting court decisions or events that call for immediate 
changes to policy. 
 
Policy Training: The integrated Daily Training Bulletin component is a customized, scenario-
based daily training program that links directly to the policy manual and is accessed online via 
web browser or multi-platform mobile device application. DTB records are also archived for easy 
retrieval. 
 
Adaptability: Our clients range from small agencies to large agencies with more than 2,500 
sworn personnel, including municipal police departments, county sheriff’s offices, county 
district/state’s attorneys, port police, probation departments, school district and university police, 
tribal police, fire departments and a diverse group of state regulatory agencies. 
 
Scale: More than 2,100 public safety agencies with well over 100,000 officers or deputies in 26 
states use the Lexipol system. Our subscriber base is one of the largest private networks of law 
enforcement policy collaborators in the nation. 
 
Archiving: Each version of the agency’s policy manual is archived on Lexipol servers, which 
allows for easy retrieval by the agency. This is an invaluable resource in defense litigation or 
personnel matters that call for authenticated copies of policy or training records years after an 
incident. 
 

IMPLEMENTATION/MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
Based on the following, Lexipol is the only source for Implementation/Management Services 
required by the Agency: 
 
In accordance with our standard Online Subscription Agreement (OSA) as stated in Section 4. 
the Lexipol materials are proprietary and copyrighted.  Further, in Section 5. the OSA prohibits 

Exhibit 10

http://www.lexipol.com/


the Agency from uploading the Lexipol content onto any third party knowledge, document, or 
other content management system or service without Lexipol’s prior written consent.   
 
The policies developed by and for the Agency are maintained on the proprietary Lexipol 
Knowledge Management System (KMS) and are not accessible by any other third party and by 
the terms of the OSA may not be copied, republished, loaned, modified, distributed or posted on 
servers where another vendor or third party could view or modify it.  Further, Section 6. of the 
OSA requires that the Agency not share any password or security information which would 
permit any other party to access the information on the Lexipol KMS. 
 
As the result of the foregoing, Lexipol is the only source for the performance of the 
Implementation/Management Services wherein we would incorporate updates to existing 
policies based on exclusive copyrighted materials that are developed by our legal team from 
legislation, legal rulings, court decisions, and best practices tailored to state specific application 
and in the instance of the specific Implementation/Management Services to be provided to the 
Agency, further tailored to the specific needs of the Agency.  This activity would apply also to 
the Daily Training Bulletins which further utilize the exclusive copyrighted materials from policies 
to provide personnel with practical application learning scenarios that aid personnel in 
understanding and applying the policies in their daily activities.   
 
 
For additional information or to obtain assistance please contact Lexipol at 949.484.4444 or visit 

www.lexipol.com. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 10

http://www.lexipol.com/
http://www.lexipol.com/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

CALIFORNIA 
LAW ENFORCEMENT 
Policy and Training 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

C O M P R E H E N S I V E ,  D E F E N S I B L E  P O L I C Y  A N D  D A I L Y  T R A I N I N G   |   L E X I P O L . C O M  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
“In every tragedy there is always a proximate cause: the event that 
instantly preceded the tragedy. But if you go back in time and look for 
the root cause, all too often it comes down to a lack of good policy and 
a lack of good training.”  

– Gordon Graham 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

Table of Contents 
 
 

Blank for Chief’s Preface . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 
 

Law Enforcement Code of Ethics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 
 

Blank for Mission Statement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 
 

Chapter 1 - Law Enforcement Role and Authority . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 
100 - Law Enforcement Authority . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 
101 - Chief Executive Officer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 
102 - Oath of Office . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 
103 - Policy Manual . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 

 

Chapter 2 - Organization and Administration . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
200 - Organizational Structure and Responsibility . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 
201 - [Departmental Directives]s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 
202 - Emergency Management Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 
203 - Training Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 
204 - Electronic Mail . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 
205 - Administrative Communications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 
206 - Staffing Levels . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 
207 - License to Carry a Firearm . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 
208 - Retiree Concealed Firearms . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37 

 
Chapter 3 - General Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42 

300 - Use of Force . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43 
301 - Use of Force Review Boards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50 
302 - Handcuffing and Restraints . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53 
303 - Control Devices and Techniques . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57 
304 - Conducted Energy Device . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 62 
305 - Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69 
306 - Firearms . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  78 
307 - Vehicle Pursuits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  87 
308 - [Officer/Deputy] Response to Calls . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  99 
309 - Canines . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  102 
310 - Domestic Violence . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  112 
311 - Search and Seizure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  119 
312 - Temporary Custody of Juveniles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  121 
313 - Adult Abuse . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  131 
314 - Discriminatory Harassment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  137 
315 - Child Abuse . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  142 
316 - Missing Persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  150 
317 - Public Alerts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  157 
318 - Victim and Witness Assistance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  162 
319 - Hate Crimes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  164 

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 

325 - Subpoenas and Court Appearances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 189 
326 - Reserve [Officers/Deputies] . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 192 
327 - Mutual Aid and Outside Agency Assistance . . . . . . . . . . . . 198 
328 - Registered Offender Information . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 199 
329 - Major Incident Notification . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 202 
330 - Death Investigation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 204 
331 - Identity Theft . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 207 
332 - Communications with Persons with Disabilities . . . . . . . . . . . 208 
333 - Private Persons Arrests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 216 
334 - Anti-Reproductive Rights Crimes Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . 218 
335 - Limited English Proficiency Services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 220 
336 - Mandatory School Employee Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . . 228 
337 - Biological Samples . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 230 
338 - Chaplains . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 233 
339 - Public Safety Video Surveillance System . . . . . . . . . . . . 239 
340 - Child and Dependent Adult Safety . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 243 
341 - Service Animals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 246 
342 - Volunteer Program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 249 
343 - Off-Duty Law Enforcement Actions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 254 
345 - Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation . . . . . . . . . 256 

 

Chapter 4 - Patrol Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
 

258 
400 - Patrol Function . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 259 
401 - Racial- or Bias-Based Profiling . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 262 
402 - [Briefing] Training . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 265 
403 - Crime and Disaster Scene Integrity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 266 
404 - Crisis Response Unit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 268 
405 - Ride-Along Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 279 
406 - Hazardous Material Response . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 282 
407 - Hostage and Barricade Incidents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 284 
408 - Response to Bomb Calls . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 289 
409 - Crisis Intervention Incidents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 294 
410 - Mental Illness Commitments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 299 
411 - Cite and Release Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 303 
412 - Foreign Diplomatic and Consular Representatives . . . . . . . . . . 307 
413 - Rapid Response And Deployment Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . 311 
414 - Reporting Police Activity Outside of Jurisdiction . . . . . . . . . . 313 
415 - Immigration Violations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 314 
416 - Emergency Utility Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 319 
417 - Aircraft Accidents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 320 
418 - Field Training Officer Program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 323 
419 - Obtaining Air Support . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 326 
 

 
 
 
 

320 - Standards of Conduct . . . . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . . 167 
321 - Information Technology Use . . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . . 174 
322 - Department Use of Social Media .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 178 
323 - Report Preparation . . . . . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  181 
324 - Media Relations . . . . . . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  186 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 

 
 
 
 

420 - Detentions And Photographing Detainees . . . . . . . . . . . . 327 
421 - Criminal Organizations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 333 
422 - [Watch Commander]s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 338 
423 - Mobile Audio/Video . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 339 
424 - [Mobile Digital Terminal] Use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 346 
425 - Portable Audio/Video Recorders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 349 
426 - Public Recording of Law Enforcement Activity . . . . . . . . . . . 354 
427 - Medical Marijuana . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 357 
428 - Bicycle Patrol Unit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 362 
429 - Foot Pursuits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 365 
430 - Automated License Plate Readers (ALPRs) . . . . . . . . . . . . 370 
431 - Homeless Persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 372 
432 - First Amendment Assemblies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 375 
433 - Civil Disputes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 381 
434 - Suspicious Activity Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 383 
435 - Medical Aid and Response . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 385 

 
Chapter 5 - Traffic Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 390 

500 - Traffic Function and Responsibility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 391 
501 - Traffic Collision Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 394 
502 - Vehicle Towing and Release . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 396 
503 - Vehicle Impound Hearings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 400 
504 - Impaired Driving and Evidence Collection . . . . . . . . . . . . 402 
505 - Traffic Citations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 408 
506 - Disabled Vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 411 
507 - 72-Hour Parking Violations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 412 

 
Chapter 6 - Investigation Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 414 

600 - Investigation and Prosecution . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 415 
601 - Sexual Assault Investigations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 420 
602 - Asset Forfeiture . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 425 
603 - Informants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 431 
604 - Eyewitness Identification . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 437 
605 - Brady Material Disclosure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 441 
606 - Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations . . . . . . . . . . . 443 
607 - Warrant Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 446 
608 - Operations Planning and Deconfliction . . . . . . . . . . . . . 450 

 
Chapter 7 - Equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 456 

700 - Department Owned and Personal Property . . . . . . . . . . . . 457 
701 - Personal Communication Devices . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 459 
702 - Vehicle Maintenance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 463 
703 - Vehicle Use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 465 
704 - Cash Handling, Security and Management . . . . . . . . . . . . 472 

 
Chapter 8 - Support Services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 474 

800 - Crime Analysis . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 475 

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 

 
 
 
 

801 - Communication Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 476 
802 - Property and Evidence . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 478 
803 - [Records Bureau] Procedures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 487 
804 - Restoration of Firearm Serial Numbers . . . . . . . . . . . . . 489 
805 - Records Maintenance and Release . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 491 
806 - Protected Information . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 497 
807 - Computers and Digital Evidence . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 500 
807 - Animal Control . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 504 
808 - Jeanne Clery Campus Security Act . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 508 

 

Chapter 9 - Custody . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 514 
900 - Temporary Custody of Adults . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 515 
901 - Custodial Searches . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 527 
902 - Prison Rape Elimination . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 533 

 
Chapter 10 - Personnel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 543 

1000 - Recruitment and Selection . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 544 
1001 - Evaluation of Employees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 549 
1002 - Promotional and Transfer Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 553 
1003 - Grievance Procedure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 555 
1004 - Anti-Retaliation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 557 
1005 - Reporting of Employee Convictions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 561 
1006 - Drug- and Alcohol-Free Workplace . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 563 
1007 - Sick Leave . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 566 
1008 - Communicable Diseases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 568 
1009 - Smoking and Tobacco Use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 573 
1010 - Personnel Complaints . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 574 
1011 - Seat Belts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 583 
1012 - Body Armor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 585 
1013 - Personnel Files . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 587 
1014 - Request for Change of Assignment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 593 
1015 - Employee Commendations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 594 
1016 - Fitness for Duty . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 595 
1017 - Meal Periods and Breaks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 598 
1018 - Lactation Break Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 599 
1019 - Payroll Record Procedures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 601 
1020 - Overtime Compensation Requests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 602 
1021 - Outside Employment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 604 
1022 - Occupational Disease and Work-Related Injury Reporting . . . . . . . 609 
1023 - Personal Appearance Standards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 611 
1024 - Uniform Regulations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 613 
1025 - [Police-Sheriff's] Cadets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 619 
1026 - Nepotism and Conflicting Relationships . . . . . . . . . . . . . 621 
1027 - Department Badges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 624 
1028 - Temporary Modified-Duty Assignments . . . . . . . . . . . . . 626 
1029 - Performance History Audits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 630 
1030 - Employee Speech, Expression and Social Networking . . . . . . . . 633 

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

  
 
 
 

 
 
1031 - Illness and Injury Prevention . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 638 

 
Attachments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 

 
 
Use of Force 

300.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
This policy provides guidelines on the reasonable use of force. While there is no way to specify the 
exact amount or type of reasonable force to be applied in any situation, every member of this 
department is expected to use these guidelines to make such decisions in a professional, impartial 
and reasonable manner. 

300.1.1   DEFINITIONS 
Definitions related to this policy include: 

Deadly force - Force reasonably anticipated and intended to create a substantial likelihood of 
causing death or very serious injury. 

Force - The application of physical techniques or tactics, chemical agents or weapons to another 
person. It is not a use of force when a person allows him/herself to be searched, escorted, 
handcuffed or restrained. 

300.2   POLICY 
The use of force by law enforcement personnel is a matter of critical concern, both to the public 
and to the law enforcement community. [Officers/Deputies] are involved on a daily basis in 
numerous and varied interactions and, when warranted, may use reasonable force in carrying out 
their duties. 

[Officers/Deputies] must have an understanding of, and true appreciation for, their authority and 
limitations. This is especially true with respect to overcoming resistance while engaged in the 
performance of law enforcement duties. 

The Department recognizes and respects the value of all human life and dignity without prejudice 
to anyone. Vesting [officers/deputies] with the authority to use reasonable force and to protect the 
public welfare requires monitoring, evaluation and a careful balancing of all interests. 

300.2.1   DUTY TO INTERCEDE 
Any [officer/deputy] present and observing another [officer/deputy] using force that is clearly 
beyond that which is objectively reasonable under the circumstances shall, when in a position to 
do so, intercede to prevent the use of unreasonable force. [An officer/A deputy] who observes 
another employee use force that exceeds the degree of force permitted by law should promptly 
report these observations to a supervisor. 

300.3   USE OF FORCE 
[Officers/Deputies] shall use only that amount of force that reasonably appears necessary given 
the facts and circumstances perceived by the [officer/deputy] at the time of the event to 
accomplish a legitimate law enforcement purpose. 

The reasonableness of force will be judged from the perspective of a reasonable [officer/deputy] 
on the scene at the time of the incident. Any evaluation of reasonableness must allow for the fact 
that [officers/deputies] are often forced to make split-second decisions about the amount of force  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
 

 

 

that reasonably appears necessary in a particular situation, with limited information and in 
circumstances that are tense, uncertain and rapidly evolving. 

Given that no policy can realistically predict every possible situation [an officer/a deputy] might 
encounter, [officers/deputies] are entrusted to use well-reasoned discretion in determining the 
appropriate use of force in each incident. 

It is also recognized that circumstances may arise in which [officers/deputies] reasonably believe 
that it would be impractical or ineffective to use any of the tools, weapons or methods provided by 
the Department. [Officers/Deputies] may find it more effective or reasonable to improvise their 
response to rapidly unfolding conditions that they are confronting. In such circumstances, the use 
of any improvised device or method must nonetheless be reasonable and utilized only to the 
degree that reasonably appears necessary to accomplish a legitimate law enforcement purpose. 

While the ultimate objective of every law enforcement encounter is to avoid or minimize injury, 
nothing in this policy requires [an officer/a deputy] to retreat or be exposed to possible physical 
injury before applying reasonable force. 

300.3.1   USE OF FORCE TO EFFECT AN ARREST 
Any peace officer may use reasonable force to effect an arrest, to prevent escape or to overcome 
resistance. A peace officer who makes or attempts to make an arrest need not retreat or desist 
from his/her efforts by reason of resistance or threatened resistance on the part of the person 
being arrested; nor shall [an officer/a deputy] be deemed the aggressor or lose his/her right to self-
defense by the use of reasonable force to effect the arrest, prevent escape or to overcome 
resistance (Penal Code § 835a). 

300.3.2   FACTORS USED TO DETERMINE THE REASONABLENESS OF FORCE 
When determining whether to apply force and evaluating whether [an officer/a deputy] has used 
reasonable force, a number of factors should be taken into consideration, as time and 
circumstances permit. These factors include, but are not limited to: 

(a) Immediacy and severity of the threat to [officers/deputies] or others. 

(b) The conduct of the individual being confronted, as reasonably perceived by the 
[officer/deputy] at the time. 

(c) [Officer/Deputy]/subject factors (age, size, relative strength, skill level, injuries sustained, 
level of exhaustion or fatigue, the number of [officers/deputies] available vs. subjects). 

(d) The effects of drugs or alcohol. 

(e) Subject’s mental state or capacity. 

(f) Proximity of weapons or dangerous improvised devices. 

(g) The degree to which the subject has been effectively restrained and his/her ability to resist 
despite being restrained. 

(h) The availability of other options and their possible effectiveness. 

(i) Seriousness of the suspected offense or reason for contact with the individual.  
             

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
             
             
             
        

(j) Training and experience of the [officer/deputy].       

(k) Potential for injury to [officers/deputies], suspects and others. 

(l) Whether the person appears to be resisting, attempting to evade arrest by flight or is 
attacking the [officer/deputy]. 

(m) The risk and reasonably foreseeable consequences of escape. 

(n) The apparent need for immediate control of the subject or a prompt resolution of the 
situation. 

(o) Whether the conduct of the individual being confronted no longer reasonably appears to 
pose an imminent threat to the [officer/deputy] or others. 

(p) Prior contacts with the subject or awareness of any propensity for violence. 

(q) Any other exigent circumstances. 

300.3.3   PAIN COMPLIANCE TECHNIQUES 
Pain compliance techniques may be effective in controlling a physically or actively resisting 
individual. [Officers/Deputies] may only apply those pain compliance techniques for which they 
have successfully completed department-approved training. [Officers/Deputies] utilizing any pain 
compliance technique should consider: 

(a) The degree to which the application of the technique may be controlled given the level of 
resistance. 

(b) Whether the person can comply with the direction or orders of the [officer/deputy]. 

(c) Whether the person has been given sufficient opportunity to comply. 

The application of any pain compliance technique shall be discontinued once the [officer/deputy] 
determines that compliance has been achieved. 

300.3.4   CAROTID CONTROL HOLD 
The proper application of the carotid control hold may be effective in restraining a violent or 
combative individual. However, due to the potential for injury, the use of the carotid control hold is 
subject to the following: 

(a) The [officer/deputy] shall have successfully completed department-approved training in the 
use and application of the carotid control hold. 

(b) The carotid control hold may only be used when circumstances perceived by the 
[officer/deputy] at the time indicate that such application reasonably appears necessary to 
control a person in any of the following circumstances: 

1. The subject is violent or physically resisting. 

2. The subject, by words or actions, has demonstrated an intention to be violent and 
reasonably appears to have the potential to harm [officers/deputies], him/herself or 
others.           
            

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
            
            
            
   

(c) The application of a carotid control hold on the following individuals should generally be 
avoided unless the totality of the circumstances indicates that other available options 
reasonably appear ineffective, or would present a greater danger to the [officer/deputy], the 
subject or others, and the [officer/deputy] reasonably believes that the need to control the 
individual outweighs the risk of applying a carotid control hold: 

1. Females who are known to be pregnant 

2. Elderly individuals 

3. Obvious juveniles 

4. Individuals who appear to have Down syndrome or who appear to have obvious neck 
deformities or malformations, or visible neck injuries 

(d) Any individual who has had the carotid control hold applied, regardless of whether he/she 
was rendered unconscious, shall be promptly examined by paramedics or other qualified 
medical personnel and should be monitored until examined by paramedics or other 
appropriate medical personnel. 

(e) The [officer/deputy] shall inform any person receiving custody, or any person placed in a 
position of providing care, that the individual has been subjected to the carotid control hold 
and whether the subject lost consciousness as a result. 

(f) Any [officer/deputy] attempting or applying the carotid control hold shall promptly notify a 
supervisor of the use or attempted use of such hold. 

(g) The use or attempted use of the carotid control hold shall be thoroughly documented by the 
[officer/deputy] in any related reports. 

300.3.5   USE OF FORCE TO SEIZE EVIDENCE 
In general, [officers/deputies] may use reasonable force to lawfully seize evidence and to prevent 
the destruction of evidence. However, [officers/deputies] are discouraged from using force solely 
to prevent a person from swallowing evidence or contraband. In the instance when force is 
used, [officers/deputies] should not intentionally use any technique that restricts blood flow to the 
head, restricts respiration or which creates a reasonable likelihood that blood flow to the head or 
respiration would be restricted. [Officers/Deputies] are encouraged to use techniques and methods 
taught by the [Anytown Police Department] for this specific purpose. 

300.4   DEADLY FORCE APPLICATIONS 
Use of deadly force is justified in the following circumstances: 

(a) [An officer/A deputy] may use deadly force to protect him/herself or others from what he/she 
reasonably believes would be an imminent threat of death or serious bodily injury. 

(b) [An officer/A deputy] may use deadly force to stop a fleeing subject when the [officer/deputy] 
has probable cause to believe that the person has committed, or intends to commit, a felony 
involving the infliction or threatened infliction of serious bodily injury or death, and the 
[officer/deputy] reasonably believes that there is an imminent risk of serious bodily injury  
             
             

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
             
             
             
              
or death to any other person if the subject is not immediately apprehended. Under such 
circumstances, a verbal warning should precede the use of deadly force, where feasible. 

Imminent does not mean immediate or instantaneous. An imminent danger may exist even if 
the suspect is not at that very moment pointing a weapon at someone. For example, an 
imminent danger may exist if [an officer/a deputy] reasonably believes any of the following: 

1. The person has a weapon or is attempting to access one and it is reasonable to 
believe the person intends to use it against the [officer/deputy] or another. 

2. The person is capable of causing serious bodily injury or death without a weapon and 
it is reasonable to believe the person intends to do so. 

300.4.1   SHOOTING AT OR FROM MOVING VEHICLES 
Shots fired at or from a moving vehicle are rarely effective. [Officers/Deputies] should move out of 
the path of an approaching vehicle instead of discharging their firearm at the vehicle or any of its 
occupants. [An officer/A deputy] should only discharge a firearm at a moving vehicle or its 
occupants when the [officer/deputy] reasonably believes there are no other reasonable means 
available to avert the threat of the vehicle, or if deadly force other than the vehicle is directed at 
the [officer/deputy] or others. 

[Officers/Deputies] should not shoot at any part of a vehicle in an attempt to disable the vehicle. 

300.5   REPORTING THE USE OF FORCE 
Any use of force by a member of this department shall be documented promptly, completely and 
accurately in an appropriate report, depending on the nature of the incident. The [officer/deputy] 
should articulate the factors perceived and why he/she believed the use of force was reasonable 
under the circumstances. To collect data for purposes of training, resource allocation, analysis and 
related purposes, the Department may require the completion of additional report forms, as 
specified in department policy, procedure or law. 

300.5.1   NOTIFICATION TO SUPERVISORS 
Supervisory notification shall be made as soon as practicable following the application of force in 
any of the following circumstances: 

(a) The application caused a visible injury. 

(b) The application would lead a reasonable [officer/deputy] to conclude that the individual may 
have experienced more than momentary discomfort. 

(c) The individual subjected to the force complained of injury or continuing pain. 

(d) The individual indicates intent to pursue litigation. 

(e) Any application of a [EMDT device] or control device. 

(f) Any application of a restraint device other than handcuffs, shackles or belly chains. 

(g) The individual subjected to the force was rendered unconscious. 

(h) An individual was struck or kicked.        
             

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
             
             
             
  

(i) An individual alleges any of the above has occurred. 

300.5.2   REPORTING TO CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 
The [Records Manager] or the authorized designee shall ensure that data required by the 
Department of Justice (DOJ) regarding all officer-involved shootings and incidents involving use of 
force resulting in serious bodily injury is collected and forwarded to the DOJ as required by 
Government Code § 12525.2. 

300.6   MEDICAL CONSIDERATION 
Prior to booking or release, medical assistance shall be obtained for any person who exhibits signs 
of physical distress, who has sustained visible injury, expresses a complaint of injury or continuing 
pain, or who was rendered unconscious. Any individual exhibiting signs of physical distress after 
an encounter should be continuously monitored until he/she can be medically assessed. 

Based upon the [officer/deputy]’s initial assessment of the nature and extent of the subject’s 
injuries, medical assistance may consist of examination by fire personnel, paramedics, hospital 
staff or medical staff at the jail. If any such individual refuses medical attention, such a refusal shall 
be fully documented in related reports and, whenever practicable, should be witnessed by another 
[officer/deputy] and/or medical personnel. If a recording is made of the contact or an interview with 
the individual, any refusal should be included in the recording, if possible. 

The on-scene supervisor or, if the on-scene supervisor is not available, the primary handling 
[officer/deputy] shall ensure that any person providing medical care or receiving custody of a 
person following any use of force is informed that the person was subjected to force. This 
notification shall include a description of the force used and any other circumstances the 
[officer/deputy] reasonably believes would be potential safety or medical risks to the subject (e.g., 
prolonged struggle, extreme agitation, impaired respiration). 

Persons who exhibit extreme agitation, violent irrational behavior accompanied by profuse 
sweating, extraordinary strength beyond their physical characteristics and imperviousness to pain 
(sometimes called “excited delirium”), or who require a protracted physical encounter with multiple 
[officers/deputies] to be brought under control, may be at an increased risk of sudden death. Calls 
involving these persons should be considered medical emergencies. [Officers/Deputies] who 
reasonably suspect a medical emergency should request medical assistance as soon as 
practicable and have medical personnel stage away if appropriate. 

300.7   SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITY 
When a supervisor is able to respond to an incident in which there has been a reported application 
of force, the supervisor is expected to: 

(a) Obtain the basic facts from the involved [officers/deputies]. Absent an allegation of 
misconduct or excessive force, this will be considered a routine contact in the normal course 
of duties. 

(b) Ensure that any injured parties are examined and treated.     
             
             
             

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
             
             
             
   

(c) When possible, separately obtain a recorded interview with the subject upon whom force 
was applied. If this interview is conducted without the person having voluntarily waived 
his/her Miranda rights, the following shall apply: 

1. The content of the interview should not be summarized or included in any related 
criminal charges. 

2. The fact that a recorded interview was conducted should be documented in a 
property or other report. 

3. The recording of the interview should be distinctly marked for retention until all 
potential for civil litigation has expired. 

(d) Once any initial medical assessment has been completed or first aid has been rendered, 
ensure that photographs have been taken of any areas involving visible injury or complaint of 
pain, as well as overall photographs of uninjured areas. These photographs should be 
retained until all potential for civil litigation has expired. 

(e) Identify any witnesses not already included in related reports. 

(f) Review and approve all related reports. 

(g) Determine if there is any indication that the subject may pursue civil litigation. 

1. If there is an indication of potential civil litigation, the supervisor should complete and 
route a notification of a potential claim through the appropriate channels. 

(h) Evaluate the circumstances surrounding the incident and initiate an administrative 
investigation if there is a question of policy non-compliance or if for any reason further 
investigation may be appropriate. 

In the event that a supervisor is unable to respond to the scene of an incident involving the 
reported application of force, the supervisor is still expected to complete as many of the above 
items as circumstances permit. 

300.7.1   [WATCH COMMANDER] RESPONSIBILITY 
The [Watch Commander] shall review each use of force by any personnel within his/her command 
to ensure compliance with this policy and to address any training issues. 

300.8   TRAINING 
[Officers/Deputies] will receive periodic training on this policy and demonstrate their knowledge 
and understanding. 
  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 

 
 
Public Recording of Law Enforcement 
Activity 

426.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
This policy provides guidelines for handling situations in which members of the public photograph 
or audio/video record law enforcement actions and other public activities that involve members of 
this department. In addition, this policy provides guidelines for situations where the recordings may 
be evidence. 

426.2   POLICY 
The [Anytown Police Department] recognizes the right of persons to lawfully record members of 
this department who are performing their official duties. Members of this department will not 
prohibit or intentionally interfere with such lawful recordings. Any recordings that are deemed to be 
evidence of a crime or relevant to an investigation will only be collected or seized lawfully.  

[Officers/Deputies] should exercise restraint and should not resort to highly discretionary arrests 
for offenses such as interference, failure to comply or disorderly conduct as a means of preventing 
someone from exercising the right to record members performing their official duties. 

426.3   RECORDING LAW ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY 
Members of the public who wish to record law enforcement activities are limited only in certain 
aspects.  

(a) Recordings may be made from any public place or any private property where the individual 
has the legal right to be present (Penal Code § 69; Penal Code § 148). 

(b) Beyond the act of photographing or recording, individuals may not interfere with the law 
enforcement activity.  Examples of interference include, but are not limited to: 

1.    Tampering with a witness or suspect. 

2. Inciting others to violate the law. 

3. Being so close to the activity as to present a clear safety hazard to 
the [officers/deputies]. 

4. Being so close to the activity as to interfere with [an officer/a deputy]’s effective 
communication with a suspect or witness. 

(c) The individual may not present an undue safety risk to the [officers/deputies], him/herself or 
others. 

426.4   [OFFICER/DEPUTY] RESPONSE 
[Officers/Deputies] should promptly request a supervisor respond to the scene whenever it 
appears that anyone recording activities may be interfering with an investigation or it is believed 
that the recording may be evidence. If practicable, [officers/deputies] should wait for the supervisor 
to arrive before taking enforcement action or seizing any cameras or recording media.  

Whenever practicable, [officers/deputies] or supervisors should give clear and concise warnings to 
individuals who are conducting themselves in a manner that would cause their recording or  

 

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
 

 

 

behavior to be unlawful. Accompanying the warnings should be clear directions on what an 
individual can do to be compliant; directions should be specific enough to allow compliance. For 
example, rather than directing an individual to clear the area, [an officer/a deputy] could advise the 
person that he/she may continue observing and recording from the sidewalk across the street.  

If an arrest or other significant enforcement activity is taken as the result of a recording that 
interferes with law enforcement activity, [officers/deputies] shall document in a report the nature 
and extent of the interference or other unlawful behavior and the warnings that were issued. 

426.5   SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES 
A supervisor should respond to the scene when requested or any time the circumstances indicate 
a likelihood of interference or other unlawful behavior.  

The supervisor should review the situation with the [officer/deputy] and:  

(a) Request any additional assistance as needed to ensure a safe environment. 

(b) Take a lead role in communicating with individuals who are observing or recording regarding 
any appropriate limitations on their location or behavior. When practical, the encounter should 
be recorded. 

(c) When practicable, allow adequate time for individuals to respond to requests for a change of 
location or behavior. 

(d) Ensure that any enforcement, seizure or other actions are consistent with this policy and 
constitutional and state law. 

(e) Explain alternatives for individuals who wish to express concern about the conduct of 
Department members, such as how and where to file a complaint. 

426.6   SEIZING RECORDINGS AS EVIDENCE 
[Officers/Deputies] should not seize recording devices or media unless (42 USC § 2000aa): 

(a) There is probable cause to believe the person recording has committed or is committing a 
crime to which the recording relates, and the recording is reasonably necessary for 
prosecution of the person. 

1. Absent exigency or consent, a warrant should be sought before seizing or viewing 
such recordings. Reasonable steps may be taken to prevent erasure of the recording. 

(b) There is reason to believe that the immediate seizure of such recordings is necessary to 
prevent serious bodily injury or death of any person. 

(c) The person consents. 

1. To ensure that the consent is voluntary, the request should not be made in a threatening 
or coercive manner. 

2. If the original recording is provided, a copy of the recording should be provided to the 
recording party, if practicable. The recording party should be permitted to be present 
while the copy is being made, if feasible. 

Recording devices and media that are seized will be submitted within the guidelines of the 
Property and Evidence Policy. 
  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
 

 

 
CHAPTER 3 – GENERAL OPERATIONS 
  
Use of Force 
This policy describes the philosophy of the use of force by sworn officers along with guidelines on the 
reasonable use of force and related issues. 
 
BACKGROUND NOTES  

• Lexipol has strongly advocated against the inclusion of any sort of force continuum or 
escalation scale for many years, based upon very favorable language from the courts. The 
U.S. Supreme Court determined that the single question to be asked is whether a particular 
application of force was reasonable under the circumstances presented to the officer at the 
time the decision was made, and not whether some sort of alternative level of force could have 
been used (see e.g., Scott v. Harris, 127 S. Ct. 1769 (2007)). As such, this policy does not 
contain any sort of escalation scale or use of force continuum. We urge you to adopt this 
approach. 

• Specific forms of force (e.g., impact weapons, pepper spray, projectile systems) are covered in 
a separate Control Devices Policy.  

• Canines are covered in a separate Canines Policy, which will be included if you indicated on 
the Questionnaire that your agency has a canine unit. 

 
CUSTOMIZATION GUIDELINES 
Please review the following sections carefully and customize accordingly to meet your agency’s 
practice:  
 

• PAIN COMPLIANCE TECHNIQUES and CAROTID CONTROL HOLD (If your agency does 
not permit these techniques, delete the subsections or indicate that these techniques are 
restricted or prohibited. Please recognize, however, that any such absolute omission may 
prove to be detrimental at some later point if your officers nonetheless apply such force in a 
situation that would have otherwise justified its use.) 

• TRAINING (Although there may not be a specific state training mandate for use of force, 
Lexipol encourages each agency to establish regular training on this policy for all members 
who exercise arrest powers or carry firearms or control devices. A training schedule was 
purposefully not specified to avoid imposing training requirements that may exceed your 
agency’s available resources. However, you should incorporate the appropriate language that 
is consistent with your agency’s training plan into this section.) 

 
 

  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
 

 

 
Use of Force - Medical Consideration 

Topic: Use of Force 
DTB Date: 

SCENARIO: 
You’re grateful that [Officer/Deputy] Jim Nakayama arrived when he did. You were just 
about to lose control of Steve Taylor’s arm from his wild, almost feverish, resistance. 
Finally, the two of you are able to appropriately overpower Mr. Taylor with your combined 
strength and weight. Mr. Taylor is on the ground as you and [Officer/Deputy] Nakayama 
struggle to handcuff him. Everyone is straining through gritted teeth and out of breath. 
Suddenly, Mr. Taylor desperately begins whispering, “I can't breathe, I can’t breathe!” then 
frantically redoubles the intensity of his resistance. 

ISSUE: What should you do? 

 ______________________________________________________________________  

RULE: 
Prior to booking or release, medical assistance shall be obtained for any person who 
exhibits signs of physical distress, who has sustained visible injury, expresses a complaint 
of injury or continuing pain, or who was rendered unconscious. Any individual exhibiting 
signs of physical distress after an encounter should be continuously monitored until 
he/she can be medically assessed. 

Persons who exhibit extreme agitation, violent irrational behavior accompanied by profuse 
sweating, extraordinary strength beyond their physical characteristics and imperviousness 
to pain (sometimes called “excited delirium”), or who require a protracted physical 
encounter with multiple [officers/deputies] to be brought under control, may be at an 
increased risk of sudden death. Calls involving these persons should be considered 
medical emergencies. [Officers/Deputies] who reasonably suspect a medical emergency 
should request medical assistance as soon as practicable and have medical personnel 
stage away if appropriate. 

 ______________________________________________________________________  

ANALYSIS: 
Mr. Taylor  has engaged in a protracted struggle with you and [Officer/Deputy] Nakayama 
and it took both of you to bring him under control. Even though he is not yet 
handcuffed, he has expressed a complaint that he cannot breathe. His complaint of being 
unable to breathe should be treated as an indication of possible severe medical distress.  

CONCLUSION: 

You should consider this call a medical emergency, and you should take appropriate steps 
to obtain emergency medical assistance as soon as practicable. Mr. Taylor must be 
continuously monitored until he can be medically assessed. 

 

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

  

 

At some point in our careers, we may have heard [an officer/a deputy] say something 
like, "If he can talk, he can breathe." Not only are such comments unhelpful, they can 
seriously hurt us when our actions are reviewed by supervisors, a jury or the public. 

QUESTION: 

An arrestee’s complaint of not being able to breathe is a sign of possible serious physical 
distress and, after we summon emergency medical assistance, we must continually 
monitor the arrestee until he/she can be medically assessed. 

ANSWERS: 

True 

False 

CORRECT ANSWER: 
True 

REFER:    

300.6   MEDICAL CONSIDERATION 

Prior to booking or release, medical assistance shall be obtained for any person who exhibits signs 
of physical distress, who has sustained visible injury, expresses a complaint of injury or continuing 
pain, or who was rendered unconscious. Any individual exhibiting signs of physical distress after 
an encounter should be continuously monitored until he/she can be medically assessed. 

Based upon the [officer/deputy]’s initial assessment of the nature and extent of the subject’s 
injuries, medical assistance may consist of examination by fire personnel, paramedics, hospital 
staff or medical staff at the jail. If any such individual refuses medical attention, such a refusal shall 
be fully documented in related reports and, whenever practicable, should be witnessed by another 
[officer/deputy] and/or medical personnel. If a recording is made of the contact or an interview with 
the individual, any refusal should be included in the recording, if possible. 

The on-scene supervisor, or if not available, the primary handling [officer/deputy] shall ensure that 
any person providing medical care or receiving custody of a person following any use of force is 
informed that the person was subjected to force. This notification shall include a description of the 
force used and any other circumstances the [officer/deputy] reasonably believes would be 
potential safety or medical risks to the subject (e.g., prolonged struggle, extreme agitation, 
impaired respiration). 

Persons who exhibit extreme agitation, violent irrational behavior accompanied by profuse 
sweating, extraordinary strength beyond their physical characteristics and imperviousness to pain 
(sometimes called “excited delirium”), or who require a protracted physical encounter with multiple 
[officers/deputies] to be brought under control, may be at an increased risk of sudden death. Calls 
involving these persons should be considered medical emergencies. [Officers/Deputies] who 
reasonably suspect a medical emergency should request medical assistance as soon as 
practicable and have medical personnel stage away if appropriate. 

 

Exhibit 10























































































































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 16-01 AMENDING 
RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE PUBLIC USE OF THE LAKE CASITAS 

RECREATIONAL AREA AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 14-01 IN ITS 
ENTIRETY 

 
WHEREAS, the Casitas Municipal Water District (hereinafter “CMWD”) is 

empowered, through its Board of Directors (“Board”), to provide a number of public services in 
accordance with provisions of California Water Code Section 71000, et seq., and 
 

WHEREAS, the CMWD’s mission and legal authority are set forth in Water Code 
Section 71590 et seq. and include the authority to: (1) acquire, control, distribute, store, spread, 
sink, treat, purify, recycle, recapture, and salvage any water, including sewage and storm waters, 
for the beneficial use or uses of the municipal water district (§71610) ; (2) construct, maintain, 
improve and operate public recreational facilities appurtenant to facilities operated or contracted 
by the municipal water district (§ 71660); and (3) enforce the provisions of any ordinance of the 
municipal water district through affixing charges and petition to superior court (§71601); and 

 
WHEREAS, the CMWD Board requested and reviewed a report prepared by the law 

firm of Lawrence Beach Allen & Choi entitled “A CURRENT ASSESSMENT OF PUBLIC 
SAFETY SERVICES AT LAKE CASITAS AND SURROUNDING DISTRICT PROPERTY” 
(“Assessment Report”) at its April 27, 2016 meeting and which is incorporated herein by 
reference; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Assessment Report included four different options for the CMWD 

Board to consider in addressing the proper enforcement of its rules and regulations pursuant to 
its Ordinances at the Lake Casitas Recreational Area so that a safe and enjoyable environment 
will be maintained for the visiting public; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Assessment Report recommends that the CMWD Board, at minimum,  

amend its current Ordinances to be clear as to what it wants its employees to do with regard to 
the enforcement of its Ordinances – whether to create a Park Ranger position pursuant to Penal 
Code § 830.34(d) and Water Code § 71341.5 or to simply direct CMWD employees to “observe 
and report”; and 

   
WHEREAS, the CMWD Board thoroughly reviewed the Assessment Report, received 

additional analysis from the authors of the Assessment Report, and received public testimony 
and CMWD staff input at the April 27, 2016 meeting on the substance of the Assessment Report; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the CMWD’s Board requested additional information from staff and legal 

counsel on several issues related to the Assessment Report and issue of who should enforce 



CMWD Ordinances at the Lake Casitas Recreational Area; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the answers to the Board’s requests are contained in the Board letter dated 

May 20, 2016, which is incorporated herein by reference; and  
 

WHEREAS, the CMWD Board finds that the adoption of the proposed Ordinance is a 
project exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) 
(Pub. Res. Code, § 21000 et seq.) because it is an action that is “covered by the general rule that 
CEQA applies only to projects, which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the 
environment [and] [w]here it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject 
to CEQA.”(title 14, Calif. Code of Regs., § 15061(b)(3)). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, in accordance with its vested statutory 
authority and upon the recitals and findings set forth above, the CMWD Board approves and 
adopts Ordinance No. 16-01 attached hereto and incorporated by reference; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the CMWD Board approves the job classifications to 

add the Park ranger I, II, III, and IV positions. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the CMWD Board repeals Ordinance No. 14-01 in its 

entirety; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the CMWD Board directs and authorizes the General 

Manager or his designee to prepare and file a Notice of Exemption for this Ordinance approval 
project in accordance with the terms and conditions of title 14, Calif. Code of Regs., § 15062. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the CMWD Board of Directors on this 25th 

day of May, 2016, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Directors: 
NOES: Directors: 
ABSENT: Directors:    

 
      ________________________________ 
      Pete Kaiser, President 
      Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
James W. Word, Secretary    John M. Mathews 
Casitas Municipal Water District   General Counsel 



1 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes 

 
 
DATE:  May 18, 2016 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of May 13, 2016 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 
1. Roll Call.      Directors Peter Kaiser and Russ Baggerly 
   Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
   Ron Merckling, Resources Manager 
     
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Manager comments.    

The General Manager informed the Committee of the May 18th public workshop for input 
to the 2016 Urban Water Management Plan and Drought Update. 

 
4. Discussion regarding drought workshops and drought communication activities. 

Directors Kaiser and Baggerly expressed the need to be proactive to the customers 
about Casitas’ water future in light of the continuing drought conditions.   
 
Ron Merckling presented the comprehensive list and schedule of activities that Casitas 
staff have been and are directly involved in to achieve public outreach and education.  
The next outreach includes the Saturday workshop on tree care during drought, with over 
50 participants already signed up for the workshop.  This will be followed by the Urban 
Water Management Plan update public workshop and the presentation of drought 
conditions in the same workshop.  Staff is also fully involved with residential surveys, 
campaign signage, and customer interactions concerning the current allocation program. 
 
The Committee discussed further the Water Efficiency and Allocation Program, the 
actions implemented, the monitoring of water demand reduction, and the ability to make 
changes to allocations and/or conservation surcharges.  Director Kaiser posed the 
question of moving annual allocations to a quarterly allocation, particularly ion Stages 4 
and 5.  This would require the modification of the current billing system, which may or 
may not be possible. 
 
The Committee agreed that there is a paradigm shift on the public’s attitude toward water 
use that will need to continue to develop.  
 



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

05/20/16

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

Federal Farm CR Bank 31331VWN2 4/13/2026 $939,677 $907,550 1.901% 5/9/2016 5.53% 3563

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFK71 3/9/2026 $854,694 $846,535 2.790% 3/28/2016 5.15% 3529

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFNR4 11/18/2024 $808,961 $804,408 2.870% 11/18/2015 4.90% 3058

Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFYH4 2/8/2027 $1,015,912 $1,009,490 3.000% 3/24/2016 6.15% 3858

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 33133EFHV2 10/13/2022 $588,288 $580,528 2.200% 10/23/2015 3.53% 2303

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313381TA3 1/17/2023 $277,619 $281,606 2.240% 9/8/2014 1.71% 2397

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 6/14/2019 $1,370,274 $1,368,644 1.625% 10/3/2012 8.33% 1104

Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A0EN6 12/10/2021 $547,481 $534,125 1.107% 5/9/2016 3.25% 2000

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379RN1 12/27/2024 $978,364 $994,980 2.840% 6/18/2014 6.06% 3097

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5R35 6/13/2025 $772,339 $757,257 2.875% 2/19/2016 4.61% 3263

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OA98 8/14/2024 $126,966 $130,874 2.500% 7/3/2014 0.80% 2964

676633 Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 6/11/2021 $672,822 $671,126 5.625% 1/16/2013 4.09% 1821

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G43A4 10/30/2024 $849,441 $881,575 2.500% 7/3/2014 5.37% 3040

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 1/13/2022 $678,097 $691,768 2.375% 9/8/2014 4.21% 2033

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,055,135 $1,062,540 5.125% 1/3/2012 6.47% 537

*TB Federal National Assn 3136G0K67 4/9/2021 $192,000 $192,334 2.000% 12/2/2014 1.17% 1759

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $684,448 $685,998 1.375% 3/12/2012 4.18% 175

Federal National Assn 31315P2J7 5/1/2024 $809,665 $789,264 1.721% 5/1/2016 4.80% 2861

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 7/15/2018 $1,150,271 $1,156,521 1.375% 7/6/2010 7.04% 775

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF4 1/15/2020 $1,134,993 $1,166,635 1.375% 11/18/2015 7.10% 1315

*TB US Treasury Note 912828WE6 11/15/2023 $768,929 $822,168 2.750% 12/13/2013 5.01% 2695

Accrued Interest $90,205

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $16,276,376 $16,426,131 99.98%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $448 $448 0.46% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,848 $2,848 0.50% Estimated 0.02%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $16,279,672 $16,429,427 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $16,970,353 $17,230,910

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $18,183,045 $18,377,479

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $5,202,174 $5,202,174

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $3,028,779 $3,028,779 0.01%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $24,510,625 $24,660,381

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $24,165,566 $24,360,000

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	5-25-16 Agenda
	5-11-16 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	May 11, 2016

	Reso UWMP AP hearing 2016
	Reso budget hearing 2016 2017
	Bill list
	Memo re CMWD Ordinance Change re Park Rangers 05 20 2016 Clean (1)
	CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	MEMORANDUM

	Memo Exhibits 05 20 2016
	LBAC report and redacted exhibits.pdf
	LBAC Report (1)
	Exhibits 1-4
	Exhibits 7-10


	Reso cmwd ordinance
	CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 16-01 AMENDING RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE PUBLIC USE OF THE LAKE CASITAS RECREATIONAL AREA AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 14-01 IN ITS ENTIRETY
	ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	Executive Minutes  05 13 2016
	Investment Report 05-20-16

